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The FRONTIER NEWS is digitally published quarterly
and dedicated to ex-employees, friends, family and fans of
the old Frontier Airlines which died on August 24, 1986
and was buried on May 31, 1990.

It is a non-profit operation. All income goes into keep-
ing the NEWS going. Opinions expressed in this newslet-
ter are those of the author and not the editor or the
publication. Publishing dates are October for Fall, January
for Winter, April for Spring and July for Summer.

Articles and photos are welcomed and subject to editing
and space requirements. We cannot pay for such items
but will give credit as appropriate. All submissions
should deal with the old Frontier Airlines.

Especially welcomed are stories of personal experiences
with a humorous slant. All airline employees have a
treasure trove of such stories. Please share them with the
rest of the FLamily.

We also want to publicize ALL old Frontier gatherings.
Be sure to notify us with details: place, date, contact and
so forth. They will be published in the Timetable.

The Frontier News newsletter will no longer be printed
and mailed. Hard copies are not available but you may
print your own from the digital posts.

The digital editions are posted at our website:
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/FL_News.html

JAKE LAMKINS, Editor
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The interview with Keith Kahle was quite a project. It
was found in a packet of papers that Carolyn Boller had
sent me. Transcribing it into text for the newsletter turned
out to be more difficult than I anticipated. My OCR kept
including extraneous charcters in the transcription. If you
notice some that I missed, just gloss over them. The
interview itself is a real look into the history of the airline.

If you're interested in an in-depth look at the 13 local
service airlines and their operation, take a look at the PHD
dissertaion posted at https://ir-api.ua.edu/api/core/bit-
streams/633d0dd5-fa4b-4717-96a2-06565ea67fd2/content
It's a 308 page opus but chock full of info from that
bygone era.

I'm starting to think the time nears when I must quit
publishing this newsletter. This issue, #96, marks 24
years of putting it out. Everything ends and the runway
ahead of me shortens by the day, just as it does for you.
I’ve always liked round numbers so I may make issue 100
the last one. That would mark 25 years of publishing it
and I will be nearing 83 years of age. We shall see, but
remember, | am always looking for someone younger in
the FLamily who would like to take over any part or the
whole of my Frontier operation.

I lucked out and spotted four old Frontier Sunliner News
on Ebay that I didn’t have and have finished scanning and
posting them to our webpage at

http://FAL-1.tripod.com/FL._SunlinerNews.html

The new issues posted are Aug 1952, Oct 1952, Jan
1953 and Jan 1954. They are full of Frontier history and
great old time photographs.

Our losses due to flights west are increasing as our
group grows older. There are 2493 FLolks gone west that
I know of and whose names are posted on our website.
Our longevity champ is pilot Dick Orr who flew west on
Jul 29, 2023 at the age of 102.

FRONTIER ON THE INTERNET
http://OldFrontierAirlines.com.
Visit the Frontier website and check out our Facebook
page at FLacebook:
https://www.facebook.com/groups/172416905475

A digital newsletter for the ex-employees, families and friends of the “old” Frontier Airlines: 1946 - 1986




REUNION NEWS

REUNIONS TIMETABLE

This is the information we currently have.
Coordinators of Frontier events;
please let us know the details.

More info at http://OldFrontierAirlines.com
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DEN MAINTENANCE BREAKFAST

Breakfast, monthly, first Wednesday, 9:00 a.m.

at Ted'z Place, 5271 E 52nd Ave, Commerce City,
CO 80022

Contact:

Bob Keefer, 303-229-6904

DEN FLIGHT CREWS

Luncheon, monthly, every second Tuesday, 11:30 am
at HIRO Japanese Buffet

2797 S Parker Rd

Aurora, Co 80014

Contact:

Bonnie Dahl, 303-521-5611,
BCDahl777@gmail.com

DEN REUNION PICNIC

Sat, Aug 24, 2024

DoubleTree Hotel at I-225 and Iliff Ave.

Contact:

Carolyn Boller, 303-364-3624 bollerck@comcast.net
Julie Dickman, 303-288-2127 jjdickman@gmail.com

e
CENTRAL
YOU ARE INVITED TO THE
56th ANNUAL

FYV FSM FRONTIER REUNION
Tuesday, August 27, 2024
1:00 p.m. -2:30 p.m.
Meet For Lunch

at the Village Inn Restaurant
3364 N. College Ave., Fayetteville, AR

Due to declining attendance, we will have a smaller
reunion this year. We will meet for lunch and renew
our friendships. We have been getting together since
1968 to re-new friendships and talk about what it was
like to work for a great little airline.

All Frontier employees, families & friends are invited.
No donations but plan to pay for your meal. Let us
know you're coming so we can pre-plan the seating at
the restaurant. Hope to see you there.

For info, RSVP and/or directions:
Paul Farris, 479-409-9997,paulamos43@yahoo.com
Jake Lamkins, 479-879-8358, ExXFAL@Yahoo.com

Barbara Monday, 303-344-8745

bandbmonday@comcast.net MORE INFO
Anna Metzsch: 303-733-9968, ON
annakay1946(@hotmail.com PAGE 27

FYV-FSM ANNUAL REUNION

Tue, Aug 27, 2024

1:00 p.m. at Village Inn Restaurant

3364 N. College Ave., Fayetteville, AR

Contacts:

Jake Lamkins, 479-879-8358, ExXFAL@Yahoo.com
Paul Farris, 479-409-9997, paulamos43@yahoo.com

MCI REUNION GATHERING
Jun 22, then Aug or Sep, 2024
Contact:

Rose Dragen, 816-741-1995,
rmdragen@gmail.com

MCI REUNION

Hello all.....there is finally a date for June 22nd for meeting at
Paul and Jack's in North Kansas City, MO. Time 11AM - to no
later than 2PM. Food is available for order any time during
gathering.

We have reserved the Game Room...which aside from the
outdoor area, is their largest area...at the back of the grill. The
number of FLamily and friends that attend this time will determine
the size of the room ordered for next time. Our numbers are
decreasing...as well as the number of times we will get to-
gether....so try to make each event if possible. You are missed
when you can't make it!

Parking is available on the street, or across from the Grill, in a
fenced parking lot. There is room to bring memorabilia to show if
wanted....and you can arrive a little before 11AM if wanted. We
are looking forward to seeing you.

-MCI Frontier Reunion Committee

PS August or September is the next month for a Gather-
ing....any dates that are best for you....please drop a line to let us
know. Any suggestions for frequency of meetings....and locations
are welcome. Paul and Jack's is free at this time and they are good
hosts...but if you have a researched site you would recommend,
please do! Also please take a look at the mailing list and send
corrections or additions as needed. We have had trouble with
GMAIL and may have lost some addresses. Feel free to forward to
anyone who might be interested in attending.

Thank you



GONE WEST

20 FLIGHTS WEST REPORTED SINCE
THE SPRING 2024 ISSUE

Joe Abell,
DEN pilot
Bill Blumberg,
DEN pilot
Jack Bozarth,
MCI DEN pilot, 5/17/24, age 79
Barb Lamb Bunger,
DEN flight attendant, 3/11/24, age 80
Herb Chesney,
T PRC station agent, 11/8/23, age 92
F Ro N l E R Laura Jones Colvin,
AMA MKC flight attendant, 5/15/24, age 79, ALS
o Bill Delaney,
F L Ig h ts West DEN station agent
Marvin Eller,
STK station agent, 4/14/24, age 85
Ed Huntsman,
GONE WEST GUP ABQ HOU LAS DRO station agent, senior
We salute our FLriends on their FLight West. station agent, 5/1/24, age 72, cancer
They are not dead until we forget them. Don Jones,
All our memorial webpages are at DEN pilot
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Obituaries. html Walter Lemke,
Others are ABQ station agent, 4/30/24, age 86
AGENTS, CLERKS, SKYCAPS Gary Mackie,
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/ObitsAgents.html LBB PVW AMA MLC TUL OKC DAL TUS
FLIGHT ATTENDANTS senior station agent, 4/30/24, age 83, cancer
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Obits FAs.html Fred Meister,
MAINTENANCE DEN vp-public affairs, 3/1/24, age 81
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/ObitsMx. html Ed Quisenberry,
MANAGEMENT & OTHERS DEN senior ticket counter agent, 3/13/24, age 80
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/ObitsMgmt. html Julie Hanks Robinson,
PILOTS, DISPATCHERS, FLIGHT OPERATIONS DEN reservations agent, 3/20/24, age 78
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/ObitsPilots. html Herb Schmidt,
DEN BIL MKC regional sales manager, 4/2/24,
age 88
Jim Schwartz,
BIL DEN pilot, 5/6/24, age 95
Gary Summers,
MKC MCIT station agent, 4/2/24, age 85
Ed Trimble,
DEN pilot, 4/29/24, age 92
Al Wells,
DEN lead aircraft mechanic, 3/19/24, age 90

Two other FLolks reported FLown West but have not
been able to confirm.

Post any info on them you have.

Mark Coleman, DEN director-strtegic marketing
7/24/23

Wayne Bleser, DEN station agent

4/30/24




MORE GONE WEST

JOE ABELL
1968 - 1986
PILOT

DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Joe_Abell.html

BILL BLUMBERG
1978 - 1986
PILOT

DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Bill _Blumberg.html
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JACK BOZARTH
1978 - 1982
PILOT

MCI DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Jack _Bozarth.html

BARB LAMB BUNGER
1981 - 1985
FLIGHT ATTENDANT

DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Barb_Lamb_Bunger.html




HERB CHESNEY
1951 - 1955
STATION AGENT

PRC
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Herb_Chesney.html

LAURA JONES COLVIN
1963 - 1968
FLIGHT ATTENDANT

AMA MKC
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Laura_Jones Colvin.html

BILL DELANEY
1978 - 1986
TICKET COUNTER AGENT

DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Bill_Delaney.html

MARVIN ELLER
1959 - 1964?
STATION AGENT

STK
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Marvin_Eller.html




ED HUNTSMAN
1977 - 1984
SENIOR STATION AGENT

GUP ABQ HOU LAS DRO
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Ed_Huntsman.html

DON JONES
1970 - 1972
PILOT
DEN?
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Don_Jones.html

WALTER LEMKE
1958 - 1960
STATION AGENT

ABQ
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Walter Lemke.html

GARY MACKIE
1961 - 1986
SENIOR STATION AGENT

LBB, AMA, MLC, TUL, OKC, DAL, TUS
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Gary _Mackie.html




MORE GONE WEST

FRED MEISTER
1977 - 1978
VICE PRESIDENT-PUBLIC AFFAIRS

DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Fred_Meister.html

ED QUISENBERRY
1969 - 1986
TICKET COUNTER AGENT

DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Ed_Quisenberry.html

JULIE HANKS ROBINSON
1966 - 1975
RESERVATIONS AGENT

DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Julie_Hanks Robinson.html

HERB SCHMIDT
1959 - 1972
REGIONAL SALES MANAGER

DEN BIL MKC
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Herb_Schmidt.html




JIM SCHWARTZ
PILOT
1958 - 1986

BIL DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Jim_Schwartz.html

GARY SUMMERS
1968 - 1986
STATION AGENT

MKC MCI
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Gary Summers.html

ED TRIMBLE
1967 - 1986
PILOT

DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Ed_Trimble.html

AL WELLS
1968 - 1986
LEAD AIRCRAFT MECHANIC

DEN
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Al_Wells.html




INTERVIEW WITH KEITH KAHLE

November 18, 1980

http.//FAL-1.tripod.com/Keith Kahle.html
(This interview with Keith Kahle was discovered in a box
of Central Airlines memorabilia sent to Jake Lamkins on
April 17, 2024 by Carolyn Boller in Denver. It appears
to be a rough draft transcribed from an audio tape and
the author/interviewer is not identified. The 38 page
manuscript was scanned with Microsoft Office Document
Imaging to convert it to a digital file. Then it was edited
and annotated (in parentheses) by Jake Lamkins into the
present format.)

The Dallas-Ft. Worth Terminal Building and I’m inter-
viewing Keith Kahle. It's November 18, 1980. Mr. Kahle
was the founder and first president of Central Airlines and
was associated with that airline from its very paper begin-
nings in 1942 until 1962 and he has been affiliated with
Frontier as a stockholder and interested aviation enthusi-
ast ever since.

(Keith was Central Airlines’ President until January 1964
and terminated at Central Airlines on December 7, 1964
per his lawsuit posted at https://casetext.com/case/
central-airlines-inc-v-kahle)

Q. Keith, you’re now associated with whom?
A. With Bought Corporation (BOUGHT) Corporation,
which is a subsidiary of Bought.

Q. And are you still in the people moving areas of it?

A. Well, our main function is a project funded by the
Congress, research and development, to explore the appli-
cation of advanced technologies to fracture ice in the real
world on rail or a guide way - not only fracture it but
assemble it and dispose of it through some kind of a
combination yet to be determined, of Ilaser
beams,ultrasonic sound and microwave and the prime
contractor of that is Notre Dame University and Bought
Corporation is a subcontractor, this is funded by the
Congress of the United States, it’s a five year program and
we’re in the second year of $5,000,000.

Q. What is your title with that enterprise.
A. T hate the word consultant, but it’s a consultant to the
senior vice president.

Q. Do you spend quite a bit of time in Washington, DC in
connection with this?

A. At certain times of the year, I do, and I have other
functions out there but they aren’t related to anything
we’re talking about here.

Q. All right. Keith, I’d like to get started on your begin-
nings with aviation. From what I’ve gathered in going
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through files and material that came from the aviation
museum down in Oklahoma City, that you made major
contributions to in the way of your scrapbooks over the
years. It said that you graduated from Iowa State Univer-
sity in engineering in 1932. Was your home Iowa, ini-
tially?

A. No, my home was in Oklahoma City. Course we lived
at Norman and Drumright and Oklahoma City and in
Bethany but the base command was Okie and at that time
when I went to lowa State we were living at Oklahoma
City.

Q. Your major was engineering, and yet when you got out
of University you seemed to gravitate to aviation and to
writing about aviation. What got you into journalism?

A. Well, my dad wanted me to go to Iowa State and
become a great engineer, bless his heart, and I had no
inclination to be in engineering, in fact it took me five
years to complete a four year engineering course, and - but
I wanted to be in aviation and if I couldn’t do that, why, I
wanted to be a writer, a newspaperman. Turned out why I
was never an engineer, although I use a little bit of it now.
But I’'m no engineer.

Q. One of the first things of record I’ve been able to find
on your beginnings with aviation, was the forming in 1938
of an operation, a paper carrier called Trans Southern
Airlines.

A. That’s right.

Q. And it was a plan to fly from Amarillo, Texas to
Memphis over points in Oklahoma and Arkansas and a
Gerry Sass, S-A-S-S, was president.

A. Yeah, a real fine man.

Q. And you and a fellow named Bill Lewis-

A. Yeah, he was a very well known attorney and he was
very active in the Air Reserve and just a real top hand. In
that effort, why, we got beat.

Q. Well, Sass sold out the year following the formation of
that company to a F. C. Hall, H-A-L-L, who was an oil
man in Oklahoma City -

A. Yes, he was Wiley Post’s backer.

Q. He backed Wiley Post on the world flights. And I think
his daughter was named Winnie Mae- -
A. That’s right.

Q. And married a fellow named Leslie Fain, who was also
affiliated with that company.
A. Yeah, yes, uhuh.

Q. At that time there was a lot of the oil money that was



interested in the expansion of aviation as Hall was in the
Wiley Post efforts. What kept that Trans Southern appli-
cation from becoming a reality?

A. Well, we went to war and we just got our ass beat.

Q. Who beat you? The operation wasn’t flown by anyone.
A. No, we couldn’t get a certificate and - -

Q. Braniff got part of it out of Amarillo I understand - to
Oklahoma City.

A. Yeah, and I think Delta or Southern, got some of it over
on the eastern end, but the lesson there to me was that you
never go to Washington in this business with only merit
on your side. Merit, alone, won’t win, and politics alone
won’t win. But you combine the two and you have a 40-60
chance of winning up there and I kinda think that holds
true today.

Q. Well, the CAB had just gotten started in 1938, you
were one of the first applicants following the formation of
the CAB.
A. Yeah.

Q. Was it your idea, this route?
A. Oh, yeah, sure.

Q. You did the ground work.
A. Oh, yeah. We had a good exhibit. We had a real good
exhibit.

Q. Well, the hearings were in 1938. When did you start
working on this plan? A year or two earlier?

A. Yeah, I don’t renember exactly, I mean, Gerry Sass
was a good friend of mine and we started working on it
when I was the aviation editor of the old Oklahoma City
News, up there, a good paper. Someplace in there.

Q. You were writing about general aviation in the main?
A. Yes, uhuh, yeah, the whole thing.

Q. Were you operating your Kahle Aircraft Service7
A. No, no, I hadn’t started my flying school then.

Q. You hadn’t gotten into that yet.
A. No.

Q. Okay, so that one didn’t come to pass. Then a few
years later you started up a southwest feeder airline, also
Oklahoma City based, with a Thomas Hardin, as presi-
dent. And you had a plan to serve 60 points with regular
service and then an ambitious additional 240 points with a
mail pickup using a grab from the air with the mail strung
between two poles.

A. Yes, it was the same--the mail grab-up was one that

11

KEITH KAHLE

Dick DuPont was operating in the east successfully- and-

Q. That was Allegheny’s first beginnings

A. That's right, yes. And I became highly enamored with
Dick’s - with that pickup gadget they had on an extension
of line and I organized Southwest Airlines and interested
financially was this I. W. Burnham, a brokerage house in
New York and then this Tom Hardin was General Tom
Hardin, in my view, the infamous general who was Gen-
eral of the Hump Run during World War II and he came to
town, to Oklahoma City, had an office in the Ramsey
Tower and for some reason we didn’t hit it off. I had
worked a number of the cities involved and I feel like I
had a - some good communication with them, and with
Senator Elmer Thomas and a few people and to make a
long story short, why, one night he attempted to just move
everything out of the office, everything, just move - there
at Oklahoma City, and the night watchman of the Ramsey
Tower, called me at home and woke me up and he told me
what was going on and I couldn’t believe it, but I think
that was on a Saturday night, I’'m not sure, so anyway,
why, I go down and sure enough , he’ moving out and I
called I think it was Bob Shelton, who was the District
Attorney up there, I think I called him and Stanley Rogers
the Sheriff, or somebody, but anyway we stopped the
great Tom Hardin at the airport and then the war came
along.

Q. What could he have hoped to have done with this
material he was taking out of the office?

A. I think he was - forget now where in the world he was
going to move it to-

Q. He still had this plan to start this air service as
Southwest?
A. Yes, yes, without me. And I forget now as to where
they were going to move that to, but anyway, that game
plan ended, Oklahoma didn’t work and frankly, we busted
his ass on it.

Q. Did World War II break that up?
A. Yes,

Q. They put everything on the back burner, didn’t they?
A. Yeah, uhuh, it faded away and dissipated.

Q. So there was a moratorium on any new carriers or
routes at tttat time.

A. Well, I don’t remember, I don’t remember if there was
any moratorium but airplanes and engines and spare parts
and gasoline were in short supply.

Q. The next item I had was that in 1944, the spring of
1944, you incorporated CentralL Airlines as a name and



filed for ten routes in June and you did inaugurate a
non-scheduled service between Oklahoma City, Lawton,
Duncan in June of 1944,

A. - extensive line -

Q. Using a five place Stinson Lion and you were flying
charters as well as this non-sched intrastate.
A. Yeah.

Q. And you were getting all of $9.30 on a one-way fare for
that thing

A. I've forgotten the fare, yeah. We had an awful time
keeping that airplane in the air on account of spare parts.

Q. Because of the war?
A. Yean, uhuh, and that was basically financed by Guy
Marchant, a very fine -

Q. He spells that M-A-R-C-H-A-N-T?

A. Yeah, and Guy was in the oil field, oil tank construc-
tion company, National Tank Company, I think it was
called, Tulsa, Oklahoma and he and one other gent orga-
nized that company, very successful and Guy was in-
volved in that and his son, Bill, was the pilot.

Q. You were running a flying school at that time in
Okiahoma City?
A. That’s right, yeah.

Q. Were you a pilot yourself, or were you at that time?
A. No.

Q. Had you learned to fly?
A. Oh, I guess I had 30 to 40 hours but I never did get a
license.

Q. You had an airplane that you made the most of this
matter of stuttering, called it the K-K-Katie or something
like that? You had the name on the side of!

A. Yeah, on the nose of all the airplanes on the flight-crew
was the ones -

Q. But you didn’t pilot that yourself too much?

A. No, no, no. I didn’t have time, I was hustling students.
There was a bar of music and notes of a song, K-K-K-
Katie, and it got a lot of comment.

Q. I imagine. This column you were writing for the two
newspapers during the War, were you interested in the
war efforts going on in the Oklahoma area or was it
mostly general flying, general aviation that you were
interested in.

A. General aviation. You see, I used every angle I could
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think of to be accepted in the Air Force or as a Naval
aviator and none of them would take me, I can remember
it now, on account of my speech. We almost had some-
thing worked out down at New Orleans, with Lieutenant
Commander Danny Turner who was the former aviation
editor of the Daily Oklahoman, then he went to Orleans
and he was in that branch, he almost got me through, until
some son of a bitch, who down on that one line,the
application, any physical defects, so I had to put in there
at that time that I stuttered, but I almost became a Naval
aviator, except they wouldn’t have me. So anyway, I never
did make that.

Q. Shortly after that, the beginning of that non-scheduled
schedule you were running between Oklahoma City and
Lawton-Duncan, in ‘42, you started on your four years of
efforts of putting together an application for Central Air-
lines to serve a multitude of points in Oklahoma, southern
Kansas and northern Texas. You worked on that four
years, putting all that paper together, you had three vol-
umes of exhibits, weighed close to 30 pounds, a couple
thousand pages of testimony, and fact finding.

A. That’s right.

Q. How did you put together an exhibit of 2,000 pages?
Did you travel around the area you proposed serving to
pick up information?

A. Oh, I just devoted every spare minute that I could over
that period of time because, it sounds, it doesn’t sound
corny, but because I was completely saturated with the,
and still am to this hour, that these smaller communities
from a business and social standpoint were entitled to the
benefits of an airplane.

Q. Were they receptive to your plan?

A. Yeah, oh, yeah. And then I would - of course that effort
needed some money and just briefly, I approached Bob
Kerr, who was...

Q. He was governor at that time?

A. No, this was before he was governor and I remember
talk--he was in- had Kerr McGee Oil Company and very
successful and we, Bob and I got along great and I never
will forget it, in front of the Dallas Exchange building
down there on, guess it’s on Rail Street or -- anyway, |
asked him one summer if he would be interested and he
said he would if he didn’t run for governor and he ran for
governor and shortly after that, a very fine gentleman up
there by the name of Judge Murron, federal judge, Mur-
ron, I had a talk with him at his invitation, he had heard
about me and we had a long talk at his office one day and
I told him what I wanted to do and he ended up, not then
but over a period of several weeks, he introduced me to
this Guy Marchant and Guy had great patience, because |



was on a very small salary I forget now, very small salary,
just could barely get by.

Q. Kind of a retainer fee?

A. No, no, a salary and I started bullding this exhibit. And
God, the air gets pretty short, if you’re financing some
guy over there that wants to put the stuff together for an
airline regarding economic data, and you're a rough -
tough people, oil field workers, that builds tanks and
you’re making morey out of that, you see somebody
spending time on paper, this became rather a rough time,
but anyway, he financed it and we go through a hearing,
the Oklahoma-Texas case and they took at Ft Worth and I
never will forget - walked into the lobby of the hotel on a
Sunday, the hearing started on a Monday and Tom Wrenn
was the examiner

Q. That’s W-R-E-N-N?

A. Yeah, he was later a chief examiner of the CAB whose
boy Tex is up here now and he asked me, I never will
forget it, why in the hell do you want to be in the airline
business and I said I want to serve the public. And he
looked right at me and said, that’s a good answer. There
were 42 as I recall, in that case, and to make a long story
short, Earl McConn, who won the south of Ft Worth -
Dallas, and the north of Dallas, but that, I forget when that
decision came out and ? but when that was issue the only
airline in the country that was in black ink was Mr. C.R
and Mr. Rickenbacker of Eastern and it was just impossi-
ble to raise any money - we had this certificate, we had
this certificate and Andy Anderson from up in Des
Moines, had Midwest, I think he called it Midwest Air-
lines, after a couple years we both got a letter from the
CAB, either get your airline going or toss in the certificate
and to make a long story short, the two friends of mine
that were with me in my flight school, F. Curt Johnson
(Believe this is Kirk Johnson) in Ft Worth and Dean Gill
of Oklahoma City, they said in substance, not in substance
but - if you can get Mr. Marchant and I’ve forgotten the
details but to agree to sell out for roughly 50% of what
he’s got in it, and that’s one, and number two if you’ll
start with a Beech Bonanza, we’ll put you in the air. And
I spent all one night talking with Guy, who was not able
financially to put a million dollars in something like this
and he was very, very cooperative, I never will forget that
night and so the deal was made and then I had a - we
notified the Board of that, the CAB, then I had to get the
rules, the FAA rules changed, to start to fly a US certifi-
cated scheduled airline with a single engine airplane.

Q. You were ahead of Midwest which was trying to
operate up there?
A. Yes.
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Q. Also with single engine airplanes.
A. Yes, Andy, God, we used to talk once a week at
length-at home.

Q. He was trying to operate in the Dakotas and Nebraska,
Kansas

A. Yeah, and I’ve forgotten the details of that, but I know
that I went to Washington and in 55 days, which is a
non-stop record, I got those rules changed so that we
could fly a single engine airplane on a VFR situation as a
US certificated airline and carry passengers, property and
mail.

Q. Keith, you mentioned that Guy Marchant wasn’t finan-
cially able to start the airline when you got your certificate
November of 46.

A. You‘ve got to keep in mind the economic situation...

Q. But he was a millionaire--

A. Yes, but he had, Guy had some difficulties, financially
and then also it took one hell of a man to go into the
airline business when only two airlines were in tne black.
I mean, you know -

Q. Why didn’t you ever go public with a stock sale, all of
your deals were kind of close held stock deals, just a half
dozen people would hold the stock

A. Yes, well, not until we got going could I find any body
that wanted to sell or buy some stock.

Q. How about Oklahoma? like your earlier sponsor, when
you were getting started back in the ‘30s, Hall was a very
wealthy man - Phillips Petroleum up there at Bartlesville
would have had an interest, Continental Oil over at Ponca
City would have had an interest, why didn’t they get
behind this aviation stuff, they were behind aviation in
other areas?

A. Well, I can assure you they had a chance. But I was
unable to interest them in it.

Q. Isee.

A. We did do this, though, we did have some kind of a
package of common stock and I think an option to buy
some more stock or something that we sold, whatever the
law was you could only invite, I don’t remember what it
was, but anyway we sold this stock, we invited a handpick
of the people, Republicans and Democrats, and leaders,
and we selected these people in even to hear the story at
Ada and Enid, and in Borger, and frankly I’ve fogotten the
details but in each of these cities, from that group, would
have a man on the Board of Directors and at Ada it was
the Buick dealer, and I was trying to think of his name the
other day and up at Enid it was I think Roy Pratt and then
from Borger a very fine gentleman by the name of Fritz



Thompson and these people served on the Board for
years.

Q. About the time that the CAB came to its decision, in
1946, there was a railroad strike that affected the Okla-
homa area and you got a contract to fly the mail, the first
time you got a mail contract to fly to places like Enid and
Woodward and Guyman and Kingfisher and you got all of
$166 to carry 500 pounds of mail between those points.

A. Not Kingfisher.

Q. Not Kingfisher?
A. No.

Q. Okay. You were using a twin engine airplane at that
time. Was that a Beech 18 to carry the mail-

A. No, you’re talking about - before we got in the air
under our certificate

Q That’s correct.
A. Oh, a twin Cessna, then.

Q. Twin Cessna.
A. Yeah, yeah, I’d forgotten about that, yeah.

Q. Flew that just for a little while during the strike.
A. Yeah, uhuh.

Q. When the Marchants sold out their interests to Fran
Kirk Johnson-
A. Fran Kirk Johnson, yeah,

Q. He was normally from Ft Worth-
A. Yeah, uhuh and Dean Gill.

Q. What was Gill?

A. Oil man, too, and Dean and Fran in their younger days
played a lot of polo together and Dean hunted in Okla-
homa City and he took it up with Kirk Johnson.

Q. You got your certificate from the CAB out of the Texas
Oklahoma case in November of ‘46 and you got a three
year certificate and here it is ‘49, the summer of ‘49 and
you still weren’t flying anything. Wasn’t there pressure
coming from the CAB to get -

A. Oh, this is the thing I’m saying, then we got the letter
from the CAB saying get your airline in the air or stop
flying or give the certificate back

Q. Isee.

A. And that’s when Dean Gill and Fran Johnson wanted to
talk with Guy Marchant and I was running my flying
school at that time.
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Q. Yeah.

A. Oh, gosh, yeah, been all over, not all over, but we’d
made many a call over the state to get it financed - over at
Muskogee, we were down at Muskogee there was a gent
down there and in Lawton, we even talked to Mr. Earl
Halliburton about it a couple times and we never could get
it to going, I mean we never could get the money.

Q. Well, Marchants, the father-son team, sold out in June
of ‘49, to the group down in Texas, Ft Worth, Texas,
Johnson heading up the group-

A. And Dean Gill, this just wasn’t Johnson, this was
Johnson and Dean Gill, together

Q. I see, they were both in it pretty strong together.
A. Oh, yeah, they took it over.

Q. Well, this was just during the summer and you had to
get CAB authority to fly a single engine aircraft against
your proposal of your certificate of twin engine aircraft.
What was the response of the CAB when you went back
there with a four place Beech Bonanza concept, did they
laugh at you? Were they very receptive to it, or did you
really have to fight that one through in the summer? You
had only two months to get the job done-

A. I’m not dodging it, I just don’t remember. I think Earl
? Roth was - what ever his title was then, I think he was
receptive. As I recall Earl was one of the chief staffs at
that time and he was receptive.

Q. That’s R-O-T-H, Roth?

A. Yeah, he’s with United Airlines, or maybe he’s retired.
by this time, and I don’t remember frankly, any big hassle,
I just -

Q. They just wanted to see you get started.

A. Yeah, uhuh, I don’t think anybody was making any fun
of us. And Andy I think up in lowa, I think he was getting
one about the same time, and Bob Kerr was as I recall he
was Senator at that time and he assisted, so did Elmer
Thomas and -

Q. Josh Lee was in on it?
A. Idon’t think he was on the Board at that time.

Q. I see. He was from Oklahoma, wasn’t he?

A. Oh, yeah, I’ve known Josh, I knew Josh when he was
speaking in the Chatauqua circuit when I was a young kid
at Norman, Oklahoma...Josh and my Dad were ac-
quainted.

Q. Why did the general office get moved from Oklahoma
City, which was the pivot point for the system down to the



far end at Ft Worth?
A. I couldn’t get financing at Oklahoma City so we moved
it where we could get financing.

Q. But Johnson wouldnt finance it if it was going to be an
Oklahoma City based airline? He moved everything in a
month, he moved down there.

A. Yeah, I think he wanted down there. It was no big deal.
Of course the very able Stanley Draper of the Oklahoma
City Chamber of Commerce, he was helpful, very active,
Stanley was, and Jack Hall, so many people were in it.
And they were unhappy, but they never failed to support
us, at the CAB.

Q. Okay, then you moved down there and on September
15, 1949, you started your first scheduled operation out of
Meacham Field at Ft Worth, it was a small operation, at
the time you had about 80 employees and about a third of
them were pilots and - how did you happen to decide on
the single engine Beech as against other aircraft?

A. That was the only thing I could get financed.

Q. I see, that’s the only thing that was available.

A. Well, no, that was the only thing I could get financed.
We knew that they at the time, and so did Fran and Dean,
that this would not work and would not serve the public,
and they knew that, but the game plan was to get started.
And involved in this, in the financing, was Mr. Harding,
the Chairman of the Board of the Ft Worth National Bank
at Ft Worth and -

Q. Do you remember Harding’s first name? You may
recall it later.

A. And his son Bob Harding flew in the war, had a very
outstanding combat record so Bob came in as vice presi-
dent of operations and the bank furnished the money and
of course Fran and Dean signed the note and I think I
signed one or two of the early notes, although I was, if
anything had happened they knew I couldn’t have paid it,
I think we borrowed about a million dollars to start with,
something like that.

Q. Well, a Beechcraft Bonanza, which is a four-place
airplane, one pilot and three passengers, as I understand it,
had a 600 pound payload which would be -

A. I’ve forgotten.

Q. Just four passengers, if you got, or the pilot and three
passengers, you didn’t have any room for anything else.
A. You’re right. Yeah, that was the only way we could get
started on it.

Q. How did you happen to pick the name Central over any
possible other names, you had Southern worked into other
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names that you used previously.

A. Well, that’s odd. When Guy Marchant was making up
his mind as to whether he wanted to go through this
situation, why, the war was on and his attorney in Okla-
homa City and my friend and his friend, an attorney was
named Luther Bohannon and he was attached in the Air
Force, a Major, or maybe it was Lt Colonel and he was
stationed at Colorado Springs in Intelligence. And he
wanted and Guy wanted Bo (Not sure who this is - not
mentioned elsewhere in the interview. It might be a typo
and refer to Bob Harding.) to give us his opinion on this,
so Guy Marchant, Guy and I drove from Oklahoma City
up to Colorado Springs and about Lamar we ran into a hell
of a snowstorm and we, I said Colorado Springs, I meant
Denver But anyway, we had a half the night we had a
meeting in the Brown Palace Hotel up there and Bo
thought this had a future and we could make some money
and we all had a couple drinks and somebody brought up
what shall we name it and Guy turned to Bo and said Bo,
what do you think and he said, well, it’s the center part of
the United States, why don't we just call it Central Air-
lines, so we all shook hands and that was it.

Q. Huh, it was that easy-
A. And Bo now is a Federal Judge in Oklahoma City. -
very outstanding judge.

Q. When you started your operation in that September
15th date, 1949, you only had one station and that was at
Dallas where you had your own man on the ground, in all
the other places you either had-

A. Fixed base operators

Q. Fixed base operators or Mid-Continent or Continental
or TWA doing the work for you and the fixed base
operators which I understand it, were getting about $150 a
month plus 10% commission on whatever was sold.

A. I’ve forgotten that, right, yeah.

Q. How long did that kind of an operation work?
A. Did you say how long or how -

Q. Yeah, a year, did you run it that way?

A. I don’t remember. Generally, from an operation stand-
point all of these guys could understand what you mean
about safety and warming up a piston plane and putting
the blocks under it and if we had any airplane sickness,
these guys either were A & Es or they had A & Es. In
regard to the paper work, they were pretty sloppy, they
just weren’t dishonest or lazy, they just were sloppy and
in regard to marketing, they were't worth a damn. I mean,
major marketing, then and now, and I don’t mean that in
any criticism at all because those guys were absolutely
wonderful in regard to handling the passenger at his
airport. And they knew everybody in town. What was the
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name, Ada Roll?, I think of him, he was just a guy to love,
I mean he’s just a hell of a nice guy, wife and all that, you
know, and from the operations standpoint and from the
passenger standpoint at the airport, but you couldn’t get
them to make a phone call or sales pitch and so we had to
move on.

Q. Did you have teletypes linking your stations at that
time, initially?
A. No

Q. What did you depend on, phone calls?
A. Yeah , we couldn’t afford teletypes, yeah, that came -

Q. Your inaugural service out of Meacham Field just got
as far as Love Field and it was low ceilings, weather?

A. Yeah. We landed at Love Field non-stop from
Meacham Field.

Q. What were you flying, two or three aircraft on that
effort?

A. No, I think we had 11 airplanes and I think we had
every one in the air.

Q. They were all flying?
A. Yeah.

Q. And they all got grounded at Love Field?

A. Oh, yeah, George Adaway was on it and Josh Lee was
on the Board at that time and we had the Assistant Post
Master General and the mayors and - I can assure you we
had the right people. Yeah.

Q. What did you do, just hang around Love Field termi-
nal?

A. Well, we went into the terminal and it was a big room
and we just had a party and someplace I've got some
pictures of that and the dignitaries -

END OF SIDE 1.

Flip side of an interview that we started with Keith Kahle,
the founder and first president of Central Airlines, we
were talking Keith on the other side as we finished, that
you were stuck at Love Field on the inauguration of
Central’s service with single engine four place Beech
Bonanza aircraft and that you had the whole fleet of
Beechceraft, 11 of them, all flying at the same time with
VIPS on board, all of whom were grounded with you there
at Love Field. What happened to the plans of the Adas and
Enids for-

A. Well, we had weather pretty much over all of Okla-
homa. I think that we weathered in the next day, but the
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following day I think we went ahead with our normal
flights, We lost some of our V1Ps.

Q. You couldn’t fly an instrument or night operation at
that time- visual flight rules.
A. That’s right, that’s right.

Q. You didn’t have teletypes at the stations initially, you
depended on the radio, or on the telephone-
A. That’s right, and radio.

Q. You had ground to air radio transmission with the
stations-
A. Yeah,

Q. So you did have radio installed-
A. Oh, yeah, uhuh.

Q. Reservations, did you have a reservations system?
A. Yeah, and that was by phone.

Q. And your reservations were where, Meacham Field?
A. Yeah, uhuh.

Q. Then on the next day, the 16th of September, you
continued with your inaugural services, elsewhere?
A. The next day, I think, I don’t remember when it was.

Q. You continued on-
A. Oh, yeah, sure, oh, yeah.

Q. Now, you’ve always been a very keen guy on generat-
ing as much free publicity as you could for Central
Airlines. Of course, you have a newspaper background
and appreciate what the newspapers and radio (at that
time there was no television,) could do for you. Did you
get good cooperation from the media on your news re-
leases?

A. Oh, yeah.

Q. You’d run them out a lot of releases-?
A. Oh, yeah, we didn’t have any money to buy any
advertising.

Q. Did you write those releases yourself, mainly?
A. Well, when I was starting out I did, because I didn’t
have anybody else

Q. Nobody else checked out on it.
A. I forget when we first hired our first PR guy.

Q. It was soon obvious that with a 600 pound payload you
weren’t going to carry much. You either carried two or
three passengers or you carried mail, but you couldn’t
carry a full load of each. When did you start, seriously



start considering the switchover from the single engine to
the DC-3?

A. I don’t remember the exact date but I imagine the end
of the first month. As I mentioned earlier, Fran and Dean
and the bank knew that the Beech was simply an interim
airplane and at the end of six months it was just obvious
that we couldn’t take care of our passengers and they
resented, in fact Phillips Petroleum Company wouldn’t
allow their people to fly on us.

Q. Were they receptive then to putting more money into
this to get decent service?
A. Oh, yeah.

Q. Before that they were adamant to that they wanted a
single engine-

A. The word adamant isn’t right - it was cautious. You’ve
got to keep in mind a lot of carriers weren’t ready.

Q. I'see. Okay. You started your first DC-3 service a year
later in November, 1950.
A. Whenever it was-

Q. And you had it pretty well system wide with 21
passenger DC-3s a year later in ‘51. In ‘50 of course the
Korean War started. The area that you were serving there
tn Oklahoma, Texas and other points had a lot of military
bases, Air Force Bases. You immediately started capital-
izing on moving military in connection with the Korean
War. Also about this time in ‘51 or 52, you ended up with
a small fleet of C-46s, that you used to move CAM
movements.

A. That’s right.

Q. Civilian Air-Military. And this was separate, it was
over here in San Antonio, is that correct?

A. Yes, uhuh, and we moved, we didn’t go over the water,
in any of those, I mean over the Pacific or Atlantic.
They’d keep running pretty heavy between bases.

Q. These were all charter operations.
A. Yean, from the military.

Q. And what did you do, set up a little company separate
from your operation to there at Meacham Field? To
operate out of San Antonio?

A. I think it was all under corporate wise, county wise, |
think it was all under as I recall, all under Central but
operation wise it was an entirely different -

Q. Your people, mechanics, what have you, weren’t
checked out on C-46s, they were 47s, what did you do,
have = was it Slick that did your maintenance for you over
there at San Antonio?
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A. I think Earl did some of it and I think we had our
instrument work done by was it Brad down at Houston?
The only work that our guys did was line maintenance,
Earl did the biggest part of it, Earl Slick.

Q. I see. When you started the DC-3 operation, you put
fellows on board, pursers you called them, yet when you
had the C-46 operation in 1952, you used stewardesses
over there. Why the difference?

A. Because the GIs would behave better on board with a
stewardess than an attendant.

Q. Why didn’t you use stewardesses on the rest of the DC
-3 system at that time, instead of pursers? Were they used
to unload freight, or something?

A. Well, we had a good reason, I can’t remember what it
was.

Q. They’d help unload cargo, wouldn’t they, baggage- but
A. Yeah, but there was something else, I don’t remember.

Q. Okay. What were some of your initial problems with
the DC-3 operation. You could now fly night and IFR
operations, couldn’t you?

A. Yeah.

Q. So you did have radio and you had teletypes
A. Had teletypes and reservations -

Q. In much of Frontier’s early beginnings, on a lot of our
system we didn’t have established CAA at that time,
airways, so we put in our own homing devices, H-markers
in order to navigate.

A. We had those at, I think, had one out around Wood-
ward or I think it was Woodward, in that area, and one
over central Oklahoma, some place.

Q. Now, the rest of the areas you used commercial radio
stations to home in on them, is that correct?
A. Yeah, uhuh.

Q. What would they - just tune in some AM station and
listen to music until they got over it?

A. Yeah, uhuh, and we turned that into some kind of a
publicity situation too, and also, all of our station people
were licensed weather observers and we would furnish the
weather, systemwise, to go over the radio station. In fact,
out at Amarillo, I can’t remember the youngster’s name,
but later they became the weather channel on the station
out there and then on TV, I can’t remember his name, but
we got a lot of favorable publicity because - and later, in
Amarillo, they’d mention furnished by Central Airlines.

Q. When you were first getting organized, you placed a



great deal of emphasis upon the morale of the employees,
what was it you started with, you called it the ‘49ers, you
started in ‘49.

A. That’s right.

Q. And you started with 83 and there were still many with
you over the years.
A. Oh, yeah, oh yes, even to this day, from time to time.

Q. Then you always referred - you also cited somebody
who did well, whether he was a mechanic or a pilot or a
station agent, or a stewardess, whatever, as a member of
your ball team, that you were a long ball hitter or some-
thing like that, used baseball terminology. Did this catch
on with your employees?

A. Yeah, yeah.

Q. And you were great for handing out plaques that they
could frame and it that would have their name on them
that credited them with some effort.

A. Oh, yeah. Oh, I hear from these people even to this day.
We really had, I think it’s a good word, we really had a
ball.

Q. This close-knittedness

A. In fact, just today when I was walking down the hail,
one of the Frontier guys looked at me and said Hi, Keith,
and we just hugged each other.

Q. Yeah, like the fellow that stuck his head in the door
just a minute ago,
A. Yeah, uhuh.

Q. At Christmas time I understand you used to give out
little gifts to the people, sometimes you’d give them
cheese, a box of cheese or a ham or something like that, so
you had this on the system and the guys still talk about the
box of cheese or ham that you gave them. You weren’t
paying too well, nobody was being paid too well, so you
had to have a good strong morale factor going within the
company. Around the system, were the civic leaders, the
state leaders, the large corporations like Phillips and
Continental, were they cooperative in the problems you
had in trying to generate traffic? How did you get Phillips
or Continental to use your service when they had their
own fleets of aircraft- I mean- -

A. Well, that wasn’t easy. In the real early days, why, I
went to Mr. ? and he was a tough son of a gun. But I
talked to him in the Little Rock Museum one time, one
time up at Bartlesville, I forget what I was even doing up
there and all of a sudden the sun was shining on his eye
and I'll never forget his face, but all of a sudden I remem-
ber he said in substance we’ll use you. I've forgotten these
details,
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Q. Did you lay it on the line with these people, you’d
better use us or we’re going to fold?
A. Oh, yeah, yeah.

Q. How about Halliburton, over there at Duncan, did they
use you?

A. They did as long as Earl was active in the company and
they would use us, our air freight, on the bits, which were
small but very heavy, and these would go all over the
world. They used that a great deal, I don’t know how
they’re moving those things, now. The traffic was spas-
modic.

Q. How about Phillips between Bartlesville and Borger,
Borger being a company town.
A. Oh, hell yes, they flew with us back and forth -

Q. They would use you, they wouldn’t use their own
fleet?

A. Oh no, oh no, that was ham and eggs, oh yeah - we
gave them service and if we had a schedule change we
would talk it over with them, oh, yeah.

Q. Now, you were very strong on political support, you
made the most of your governors, made the most of your
mayors, made the most of your Congressional representa-
tives. You, yourself participated a great deal in the activi-
ties of hearings back in Washington, but you always
ended up with a tremendous number of witnesses - when
Frontier was competing with Central in some cases, you
always overwhelmed us with the witnesses you ended up
with, you’d have hundreds of them, and testimony from
all of them. To get their-

A. They did that at their own expense, too, their own time.

Q. Yeah, you couldn’t pay their expenses.
A. Well, we couldn’t afford it, anyway.

Q. No. Did you help them write testimony in order to get
them into the act?
A. Oh, yeah, maybe we might suggest -

Q. Okay. You used members of your Board of Direc-
tors,you had a lot of Directors, and at one time you were
selling a small amount of stock in each community to get
local interest stimulated.

A. Yeah, I told you about Ada and Enid and Borger.

Q. But you’d end up with Board members and you’d use
them to help push for you.

A. Oh, yeah, every Board member we had made a contri-
bution, even Jimmy Stewart.



Q. Yeah, I was just going to bring that up - that Jimmy
Stewart was a friend of Johnson’s and also there was a
name - race track driver - ?

A, You’re thinking of Joe DiBona

Q. Yes

A. Who was a World War II fighter pilot and he entered
several of the coast to coast air races and Jimmy Stewart
sponsored him and it wasn’t the Bendix, it was the other
race, whatever it was, and Joe won a couple of those.

Q. Well, Stewart helped you out once when he was
filming a thing called Strategic Air Command, they
worked this Central DC-3 into the plot.

A. That’s right, right here at Carson (4FB). Oh, Jim was
just a class guy, God, he was just marvelous. He would
come to a Board meeting and he would contribute, he
would contribute his suggestions and observations and I
always had the feeling that everything that I sent him and
I tried to keep our Board of Directors advised as well as
the bankers, Murray Geiger, down at the Ft Worth Na-
tional Bank, Chairman of the Board, I would see him once
a month regularly and just give him the good and bad, and
the Board members, but Jim, I always had the feeling that
Jim would come to town and from his conversation, that
he read everything I sent him and in fact, I had a note from
him, he’s been sick you know, and I wrote him at the
hospital and to his home and I had a note from him about
two weeks ago.

Q. I’'ll be darned. There was a letter in your collection of
things up there in at Oklahoma City at the Oklahoma
Aviation Historical Museum up there, that Jimmy Stewart
had signed that had been personalized and sent to travel
agents around on your system, thanking them for the
traffic that they had generated for Central.

A. I'd forgotten that, yeah.

Q. And he signed it personally, each letter.

A. Oh, he would go on all the flights and oh, God, we’d go
on our flight and the airport would fill up, you know, oh
yeah, sure.

Q. You carried a lot of air freight as well as passengers?
A. Well, it depends on -

Q. Well, oil, didn’t they use it, moving parts?

A. Yes, Halliburton would use it a great deal and - out of
Wichita into Liberal when we went across there into that
gas field at Liberal.

Q. A lot of drilling, there.
A. Yeah, and -
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Q. Did the military use it, like at Lawton?
A. Not much, you’re talking about air freight.

Q. Uhuh.

A. Not much, oh, once in a while we’d get a box that was
under guard and two or three guys would load it and then
get on the airplane, but air freight wasn’t any big deal with
us.

Q. You were working with the other local service carriers,
trying to get a permanent certificate, these three year
certificates would run out pretty fast and you were always
going back

A. Yeah, that was a massive effort.

Q. And you were trying to get a longer certificate and
finally the Board, I think it was in 1955, says okay, we’ll
give you guys all permanent certificates and it made
financing a little easier, didn’t it?

A. Oh, yeah, my God, yes.

Q. Also you had the guaranteed loan deal from the CAB-
A. Well, that came along later, considerably later.

Q. Yeah, and then also later, you started carrying mail,
surface mail, you tried it as an experiment around Christ-
mas time,

A. Yeah

Q. And locals did so well that the Post Office decided to
continue this.

A. Yeah, Senator Frank Carlson, of Kansas, a Republican,
he was a leader of that in Congress, he was most respon-
sive to that suggestion and God, every Christmas, I’d have
to call the Senator and ask him if he would shake up some
body, because we had space and I forget the rate, it wasn’t
much income, but from a public service standpoint, I
mean public service standpoint, people were interested in
getting their Christmas mail, and every Christmas, why,
that should have - Cecil Hodges was the gent here, Super-
intendent of whatever it was, and we used to laugh about
it quite a bit, but a good friend of mine, not an enemy, but
I needed him to - Del ? the post master up at Ada and
Johnny give the bastards this mail and I had to have
Senator Carlson to suggest he do that.

Q. Now, the local service airlines finally realized they had
to make a concerted effort collectively and organized this
Association of Local Transport Airlines, ALTA, as they
called it. Were you in on the beginnings of that?

A. ALTA? Oh, yeah, ALTA was formed one Sunday
afternoon at the Olympic Hotel in Seattle -

Q. Nick Bez?



A. Nick Bez, myself

Q. Ed Converse?
A. Ed was supposed to be there, but he hadn’t, on account
of weather. It was Nick’s idea and -

Q. He headed up West Coast at that time?

A, Yeah, that’s right and anyway, we talked with Ed and I
think I remember that this, my rememories of that, the
differences, is quite the difference, from Ed, Ed Converse,
but there was Nick and I in the room and I remember that
we -

Q. Was MacMyhre in on that beginning?
A. No, no, Nick and I were in the room and we wanted to,
Nick wanted to have Earl McConn in real bad-

Q. Texas International?
A. Yeah, uhuh, and he had talked with Ed Converse and
Ed was 100% for it and was going to be that week- -

Q. Converse had Bonanza at that time?

A. Yeah, uhuh, and Nick felt that he could get John
Conley of Pacific and I felt that I could get Earl McConn
and -

Q. Did Pioneer participate in any of this - at that time?
A. No, this was after Bob Six had bought Pioneer.

Q. Isee.

A. And well, we strategized that Earl McConn could get
Frank Hall and if we could get Frank Hall - well Tom
Davis

Q. Hall’s with Southern?
A. Yeah, uhuh,. and I felt that I could get Laddy Hamilton
with Ozark and Glen Hicks with Lake Central -

Q. How about Mohawk. and Allegheny-
A. I have forgotten on that but -

Q. There was Peach.

A. Yeah, Bob Peach, well, wait a minute, I think Ed
Converse felt he could get either Les Barnes or Bob
Peach, I’ve forgotten, but that’s when it started and then at
that same afternoon, why, we decided, or he decided and I
went along on - some guy by the name of Joe Adams to
head up the organization in Washington.

Q. Wasn’t Don Nyrop, who is president of Northwest
Airlines, today, wasn’t he your first legal advisor there in
Washington, Don Nyrop? He had been with the Board -
A. I know-
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Q. He’d been favorable to local service airlines initially-
A. Yeah, now, wait a minute, in that meeting though, Nick
called Joe Adams.

Q. I thought Nyrop was ahead of Adams.

A. He might have been - well, he had to be, because Joe
has been, because when he came on board, he’s been there
ever since in some capacity, but I remember we called Joe
that day - I’m vague on the details.

Q. He may have been general manager and Nyrop may
have been your legal counsel.
A. I’ve forgotten.

Q. Yeah, but was it hard getting them together initially, or
were they all receptive to the idea? Conn was a holdout,
wasn’t he, Earl Conn?

A. Yeah, but I finally got him, and Nick called him, too. I
think I went to Houston to see him one time or two times
and I think Nick saw him some up at Washington or at a
meeting. He didn’t come right in, but when he did come
in, he was an aggressive member. It was a good organiza-
tion.

(The thirteen local service carriers in 1957 when ALTA
was formed were Allegheny - AL, Bonanza - BZ, Central -
CN, Frontier - FL, Lake Central - LC, Mohawk - MO,
North Central - NC, Ozark - OZ, Pacific - PC, Piedmont -
PI, Southern - SO, Trans Texas - TT and West Coast -

we)

Q. You were strongly identified in this area with the
Democratic party. When the Democrats were out of office
in Washington, did this affect the fortunes of Central to
any great degree? In route case proceedings, because the
nature of the CAB Staff changed as far as political
makeup was concerned. It became a three-two Republican
Board, then.

A. Oh, we - over all before the CAB, we won more than
we lost.

Q. You didn’t feel any political pressure there from
Republicans - that they favored Republican applicants?
A. Well, Hal Carr always did pretty good.

Q. Yeah.

A. Oh, that’s another aspect, I - you damned sure wanted
your Senators and Congressmen to know what you were
doing and what you intended.

Q. Sure. Well, they relied on you pretty well, didn’t they,
that what you told them was - you did the research for
them on your contacts and sometimes helped them on
aviation matters other than those pertaining to Central?



A. Well, you mean Senators and Congressmen?

Q. Uhuh. They needed somebody to do the ground work
for them.

A. Well, Andy Sheffel, the fine Republican from Kansas,
frankly, would call me from time to time on matters,
announcements sent to me related to Central and Mike
Monroney would - -

Q. Guess that’s you. Do you want to stop for a minute?
A. No, No.

Q. All right.

A. So, in regard to Sheffel, one time we had an ALTA
meeting in the Hawaiian Islands and he - what was he,
minority leader, appropriations committee or something
and I was able to get him to go there and this was when
my Betty was here and I never will forget flying in a DC-4
from San Francisco to Honolulu at night and I guess we
sat up all night visiting and that started, frankly, quite a
friendship, which lasted until his death.

Q. Now, Fred Boston, initially of Enid, I think he was and
he was on your Board for a long time- -
A. Oh, yeah, uhuh.

Q. I think right up till the sale to Frontier - he was
interested in the Washington contacts and public affairs
sort of thing- you and he worked together as a team?

A. Oh, yeah, sure, yeah.

Q. And he was also strong in the Democratic party?
A. Yes, in Oklahoma, yeah.

Q. Kind of a pay manager for various-
A. Yeah, he was a supporter of my growth.

Q. Kansas, of course, was basically Republican, in this
case, and Oklahoma and Texas being Democratic. When
you were trying to forge your way into Oklahoma, north
and east and west of Wichita, did you have any competi-
tion from other carriers in that Kansas territory, the area
that normally was --

A. Yeah, we had competition from Frontier.

Q. Well, Continental had been in most of those points that
you finally got into -
A. Yeah

Q. And we tried to get into the, but you initiated the case,
I think it was the Liberal case - wasn’t it?

A. I think that’s right.

Q. Yeah, Liberal and Guymon were factors -
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A. Yeah, and Frontier, you had - was there a guy by the
name of Scott Whitney-

Q. Scott Whitney is our training -
A. Yeah, well he, I think this was the case.

Q. Yeah, he was in that one, [ was too, I helped -
A.

Q . Yeah, Scott, that was one of his first big cases, when
he went to Frontier in the late ‘50s.
A. Yeah.

Q. And you won all of that, we didn’t get anything out of
that case, but it was one that you had initiated and you had
a retiring federal judge in Guymon that Dymond was
favorable to -

A. Yeah, Ross Risley?

Q. Yeah, and it was almost something for the home folks
that you got into Guymon.
A. Yeah, that’s right.

Q. In your expansion plans into other states, like
Arkansas, and on up to Kansas City and what have you- -
A. Arkansas was hard to get to.

Q. It was hard to get to?
A. Yeah.

Q. Why, it was a Democratic state, didn’t you have Ross,
Fulbright, was he out there in Fayetteville?

A. Arkansas, the fine people over there really, are - this is
awkwardly stated and sounds very crude, and too self-
serving, but Arkansas then and I imagine they’re still the
same, before they would support something, you got to be
accepted. And when Earl McConn got shall we say south-
ern Arkansas and we got northern Arkansas, as it turned
out and as a staff member later told me, that this was
discussed and you got the best part of Arkansas and you
can hindsight it tonight, they got - Fort Smith and Fayet-
teville and Harrison are still there and there’s -

Q. Yeah, they’re good points, Ft Smith and Fayetteville,
particularly.
P. Yeah, heck on that.

Q. Yeah, right here.
A. Jesus, 33,000 passengers,

Q. Just out of one point here. In Missouri, you were
competing against Ozark for those intermediate points.
Was Senator Synington very helpful to you?

A. Oh, God, he hated our guts.



Q. Hated your guts?

A. Yeah, but in Arkansas they had a very fine state
Senator over there by the name of Ellis Fagen ? and then
there was the very fine contractor by the name of Jack
Dickens ? Ellis has passed on, and Jack, I still stay in
touch with him, he’s one of the biggest contractors I think
in Arkansas and is now very sick, we still stay in touch.
But I was fortunate in that these two gents, shall we say,
accepted me, and helped me with the city’s support and
Bob Chris, now retired, the airport manager at Ft Smith
finally - and I’m not saying this to honk my own horn, this
is just the way it was - Bob and Ed, he’s retired and I
talked with him about a month ago, he helped us and of
course ? the airport manager at Hot Springs and he’s the
mayor - -

Q. It helped you how, politically?

A. At the hearings, I wanted these people to go to Wash-
ington at their own expense and say why they needed
service and why we want Certral and not Texas Interna-
tional, and not Frontier and not Ozark. We want Central.

Q. How did you work this in Missouri to get into Ft
Leonard Wood and Joplin and St Louis, how did you get
in those places?

A. Well, we got to St Louis over Ozark’s ass by - with
Arkansas urging that they needed to go there and - be-
cause once Arkansas gets behind something, they don’t
get discouraged. That’s my view.

Q. Was there a trade-off with the Missouri delegation
then, that they would support.

A. No, huhu, no, no. Of course Senator John McClellan
was chairman of the appropriation committee and he sent
his administrative assistant, got to the hearing to testify
and in regard to Harrison and Fayetteville, their Senator
was, or their Congressman was Judge ? He came over
himself and testified, he didn’t send anybody and Senator
Fulibright. He was, I think, out of the country, during the
hearing, but his, what’s his name, his aide, came here and
testified.

Q. How about the governor at that time, was that Forbus
A. What?

Q. Was Forbus governor of Arkansas? (Faubus)
A. Oh, yeah, he was on an inaugural flight and I can’t
remember whether he testified on -

Q. But he was supportive of your -

A. Oh, yeah, uhuh, and we got to St Louis because
Arkansas needed service and it isn’t any crap, they needed
service to St Louis.
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Q. Isee.
A. And the Little Rock people were - who was that
banker?

Q. They probably were served by Braniff or American.
A. Oh, hell yes, Judge Beard, he didn’t want anything to
do with us. Yeah, uhuh, yeah.

Q. You were proving successful but each time you would
always end up with a lot of intermediate points. You had
a lot of new routes added but you always had restrictions
on your routes. You never seemed to be able to get a
non-stop authority between major points, it was always
via some intermediate point.

A. And hindsighting this, we were obligated to those
smaller points.

Q. I see, and you never could get overfly authority.

A. No, no - we were able to get out of - long before this,
out of Holdenville Oklahoma and Okmulgee and Shawnee
and - on ‘account of DC-3s, the airports simply couldn’t
take them at that time.

Q. Since the merger with Frontier Airlines, 21 of the
points that were part of the Central operation when we
merged, have gone by the wayside under de-regulation,
mainly, we’ve been dropping points across Kansas, and in
Oklahoma and in Texas now, and in Lyman, Colorado.
What is this feeling about this loss, those points you
fought so very hard to get, those 21 points which we’ve
walked away from, Liberal, Kansas, Amarillo coming up
next, what are your feelings, anything nostalgic about our
not serving those points any more?

A. Well, I tell you, I am - I feel awful close to these folks.

Q. We handed off a whole bunch a few years ago to Air
Midwest -

A. Yeah, I know - I just feel like even today they’re not
getting what they deserve. I guess -

Q. Does anybody in Liberal call you and say what about
it, Keith? You got us-
A. Oh, yeah, oh, yeah, oh God - I get calls, oh, yeah.

Q. Because Amarillo was one of the first points you went
into when you were beginning service in ‘49 -
A. Oh, yeah - But to answer your question, I guess I'm a -
I just love some of those cities, corny, but I do.

Q. Yeah.
-END OF TAPE-
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Name Becomes ‘Frontier Airlines’ in Merger

Central Airlines Will Stay

By JIM NEAL

Thera were clouds above Meacham Field when a dream
came true in 1949,

The dream lifted off the Meachum runway, nosed up,
dipped o wing and banked eastward toward Dallas.

The dream was a ngine, four-passenger Beech
Bonanza. It bore proudly on its fuselage the legend “Cenfral
Airlines.”

And inside that dreatn, in one of the passenger seats,
was the dreamer — Keith Kahle, founder, father and presi-
dent of the newborn airline whose first airplane was off on
its inaugural flight.

It was an inauspicious beginning.

“The inaugural flight was from Meacham Field non-
stgp to Love Field in Dallas,” Mr, Kahle recalled dryly. “We
landed at Dallas and got weathered in.”

The airline's first flight, which was to have gone all the
way through to Oklahoma City, was made on Sept. 15, 1949
—18 years ago this month.

Sept. 30, 1967, will be the last day of existence of Cen-
tral Airlines. On Oct. 1, the 18-year-old legend on the Cen:
tral fuselape will be stripped off, to be replaced by the legend
“Frontier Airlines.”

Kahle in Favor of the Merger

The Civil Aeronautics Board approved the merger of the
two girlines early this month. And “Froatier” will be ke sur-
viving name.

“Pi highly in favor of the merger” said Mr. Kahle,
who now i no longer conmected with Cenmtral, except as a
stgcwi;holder. “I'm not sofry to see the name ‘Central’ pa
el ]

*I feel I've made a hell of a contribution to air travel
in the smalier towns, snd I'm awfslly impressed with Lew
Diamond, the president and board chairman of Frontier.
He's an extremely hard worker and a good administrator.”

Mr. Kahle, now with the Aerospace Division of Ling-
temco-Vought, was, in his words, “dumped” from Central's
board of directors in 1964, Me's not particularly bitter about
it.

The Legend of

Wert Work Prem, Sundsy, Soptember 11, T67

Central Airlines president Keith Kable, right, shakes hands
with Frank Hedrick, a Beecheraft official, on the delivery
of the first Central airliner—a four-passenger Benanza. In
the center, squatting on the wing, is former City Council-

“"There were no small airlines at that time,” he said.
“The CAB held its Texas-Oklahoma case hearing in the
Hotel Texas, with Examiner Tom Wrenn (now the CAB’
assistant chiel examiner) in charge. He was from Savoy
L . o] o) o o T

Operating an airline through smaller cities in Texas,
Oklahema and Kansas had been a dream of Mr. Kahle's
ever since he was a student in lowa State College, with a
| major in mechanical engineering and minors in agronautics
and journalism., He was graduated in 1932,

Six years later the Civil Aeronautics Act was passed.
“It said in effect that if the government chose you to rum
an airline with a certificate of public convenience and neces-
sity, it would guarantee you a fair and reasonable return
on your invesiment, on the basis of fair, honest, economic
and efficlent management,” Mr. Kahle said. “This gave me
something Lo interest possible Investors.”

Far From Gelting Into the Air
Mr. Kahle organized Central Airlines Co, in 1942 and
then spent the next 18 months working on his exhidit to show
that the public in the smaller fowns of Oklahoma, North
Texas and Southern Kansas needed airline service. When
he was finished, he had a document that weighed 32 pounds.

L The wind blew the long "'Mew Look" skirtc of Central
stewardesses at the airline’s inaugural flight to Dunean
Olla,, in 1954,

i cmsipmmni d
42 applicants for the routes involved in this case,

*“In 1946, by the grace of God, we received the certificate
of convenience and necessity.”

But Central Airline was still far from getting its first
plane in the air,

At that time, all airlines except Eastern was running
in the red.

“I needed §1 million to stayt the airling,”" Mr. Kahle
said. “From 1946 until 1949, T kept trying. I hitchkiked all
over Oklahoma and Texas trying to find the money.”

Through the late Dene Gill, an oilman, Mr. Kahle was
introduced to the late F. Kirk Johnson, another ollman., Mr,
Johnson, whom Mr. Kahle calied “Fran,” told him that if
he'd start with single-engine airplanes, he (Mr. Johnson)
would invest in the new airline.

Was Operating Flying School
“This was In the spring of 1949, Mr. Kahle recalled.
“The CAB was on my tail to get going. Right then, T was
aperating a flying school in Oklahoma City and writing a

Sunday aviation column for the Daily Oklahoman. The day

Fran said he'd invest, I was worth a total of $84.

“If somebody had told me he'd finance a kite for me,
I"d have been gong." i

Former city Councilman R. E. (Bobby) Harding was
named Central's vice president of operations. He was an
ex-alr operations officer in World War 1I.

And on Sept. 15, 1949, that first flight left Meacham Field,
“non-stop to Dallas.” It was one of 11 Bonanzas owned by
Central,

The original route included all of Oklahoma, Fort Worth
and Dallas in Texas and went as far north as Wichita, Kans,,
west to Amarillo.

“We started out boarding 54 passengers in the first
month,” Mr., Kahle said. “Most of these were my relatives
in Oklahoma."

But within six months, Mr. Kahle was back to talk with
Mr. Johmson about new planes, “We need more money for
DC-3s,” Mr. Kahle told him. “Bonanzas just aren't large
enough any more.”

The money was put in his hands, and Mr. Kahle went
shopping for the bigger twin-emgine planes, “Central Air-
m never would have flown without Fran Johnson,” Mr.

e said.

Long Series of Growing Pains

After that was a long series of growing pains including
route expansion applications lo the CAB. “Some we lost;
some we won," Mr. Kahle said.

“With the help of many cities, many senators and con-
gressmen, were were able to expand the airline info Arkan-
48, Missouri, deeper into Kansas, Inte Colorado — all against
really silff opposition,™

man R. E blw] Harding Jr., then vice president for op- &
oimlohe airl

erations ine. The date: September, 1949—a few
days before the airline tock off on its first scheduled flight.
Central will merge with Frontier Airlines Oect. .

Headguarters for the fledgling airline was at Meacham
Field until Central won a struggle to build a hangar and a
headquarters building ar Greater Southwest Airpert (then
Amon Carter Field) in 1961,

Bre—nt—Eenrrat—rmen
board of directors member
wood, Calif.

“He was one of the best directors the company ever
had. He knew airplanes, he knew equipment. His advice on
merchandise was lops,”" Mr. Kahle said. “He often made
personal appearances at new cities added to the Central
routes. Mext to Fran, he was probably one of the most
active members of the board. He had a real interest in the
airline other than in the doellar bills that came out of it.”

Jimmy Stewart Plugged Central

‘When Mr. Stewart was in Fort Worth to make the movie
“Strategic Air Comand,” partly filmed at Carswell, he man-
aged to work in a plug for Central,

In one scene, he was on the telephone at a civilian air-
port, Over his shoulder, through a window, was a view of the
flightline, While the actor delivered his lines, a DC-3 taxied
right up and stopped directly behind him.

The legend painted on the fuselage could be plainly read:
“Central Airlines.”

In the early 1960s, Mr. Johnson sold his interest in Cen-
tral to a Minneapolis group, and Mr. Stewart sold out also,
The Minneapolis group, which included Curtis Catlson, found-
er and chairman of the board of Gold Bond Stamps. didn't
keep it long.

Mr. Kahle and Midland oilman A. A, (Jack) Bradford
bought the comtrolling interests in the airline.

“Then we had major differences, and he dum me,"
My, Kahle said simply, Does ke still have stock in Central?
“T've got a silo full of it "

That was in 1964, In the 15 years Mr, Kahle headed the
airline, he saw it grow. When it was starled in 1M8, the
routes covered three states, the employes numbered 38.

s T

named Ja.. Stu_wur! nl'HuIiyh

He’s Working on Tomorrow

“When Bradford dumped me, we were carrying about
31,000 passengers a month. We had more than 800 on the
payrell and were serving 42 cities in six states.”

And now for Mr. Kahle, now that his dream is merging
with Frontier Airlines?

“I'm working on tomorrow,” he said. “That's the world’s
largest vertical takeoff and landingf military airplane, called
the XC-142 by the military and known in airling circles as
the Downtowner."

The XC-142 has the capacity of providing scheduled alr-
line service from downtown to downtown, from a landing
port no bigger than a tennis court.

“It has gll the capabilities of a helicopter and a fixed-
wing alreralt,” Mr. Kahle said enthuslastically. “It takes
off and lands vertically but crulses at more than 450 mpha
like a fixed-wing airplane. My job is to merchandise the
airplane when it becomes available to the scheduled airlines
of the nation.”




KING OF THE LOCALS

The background to the Frontier-Central merger
(Clipping from the August 23, 1967 AEROPLANE, The
International Air Transport Journal, printed in London,
England. Note says from Ed Gerhardt @ Frontier)

NOT SO much of an oversized local but more of an
aspiring trunk: that will be the new status of Frontier
Airlines of Denver once the marriage with Central Air-
lines of Fort Worth finally takes place. Frontier, the
bridegroom in the union and therefore the one whose
name will survive the merger, will be transformed with a
final few strokes of the pen from just another local-service
carrier to an airline with a route network mileage ex-
ceeded only by those of three of the domestic trunks.

Only formal rubber-stamping of the Frontier-Central
alliance is now needed. A CAB examiner, Merritt Ruhlen,
has recommended approval of the merger (p. 10 last
week), subject to the usual provisions relating to Federal
subsidy adjustments and job protection for employees.
The merger can take effect before the beginning of
September unless a review of the recommendation is
petitioned for or if the CAB itself decides that a reap-
praisal of the implications is necessary. The examiner’s
verdict followed overwhelming endorsement of the pro-
posed union by more than 99 per cent of the Frontier and
Central stockholders.

By acquiring Central, Frontier is staking a claim for
leadership of the US local-service airline industry and
creating a precedent which is likely to be repeated as a
series of mergers among the locals whittle down the
present 13 to four or five in number. Lewis W. Dymond,
the 47-year-old chairman and president of Frontier, thinks
as much and is likely to be the prime mover in arranging
further marriages. He admits that Frontier’s aspirations do
not end with Central. He plans to go shopping again and
with the backing of RKO General, a subsidiary of the
General Tire and Rubber Co., which owns 56 per cent of
the stock, can well afford to.

Recently Dymond was quizzed about rumours of a pos-
sible Frontier merger with neighbouring Trans-Texas Air-
ways. He did not deny that such a merger was out of the
question but cautiously stated that there had been no
recent discussions nor were there any currently in
progress. But what he did say was that the talks with TTA
were conducted both before and after the sale of a major-
ity interest in the airline to Minnesota Enterprises Inc., an
investment company. This suggests that while the ground
for a merger with Central was being prepared, tentative
plans were also in hand for the future acquisition of a
second local.

For the $7.5 m. being laid out for Central, Frontier is
getting a route system which fans out northwards from
Fort Worth through six States (Texas, Oklahoma, Col-
orado, Kansas, Missouri and Arkansas) to reach 40-odd
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points, now to be dovetailed into the 70-point network
already served by Frontier. Combined, the two systems
produce a grand route network total of 12,600 miles,
exceeded only by those of United, Eastern and Delta.

That one of the other locals with a network adjacent to
that of Central should ultimately absorb this, the smallest
of the 13 and one whose health has been steadily worsen-
ing, was inevitable. Ozark Air Lines was the number one
contender, having eyed Central covetously for a consider-
able period of time. It got as far as submitting a draft
merger proposal to the CAB for approval before the
finance houses which were funding purchases of new
aircraft clamped down on the proposal. Ozark cried off
and the door was left open for Frontier.

Right now Frontier is without doubt the most go-ahead
of the locals, a trend-setter in the true sense of the word
and one which by all accounts owes a good deal of its
present status to the energy and futuristic thinking of one
man— Lewis Dymond. Dymond, at 47, is one of those
human fireballs who periodically emerge from the eche-
lons of airline chiefs, a man with a colourful past who, as
the popular Press is always ready to point out, began a
24-year career with National Airlines as a $60-a-month
plane-washer and apprentice mechanic and wound up as
vice-president for operations, engineering and mainte-
nance.

In 1962 he moved to Frontier, the result of a chance
meeting with a top executive of the Goldfield Corporation
which had just bought a majority shareholding (later sold
to RKO). Goldfield offered him a vice-president’s job.
Dymond plumped for the presidency or nothing—and got
it. When he went to Frontier it was in the doldrums, doing
its best to struggle along as a feed for the trunks with a
fleet of DC-3s and making heavy weather of the task.
Dymond pulled the airline up by its bootlaces to the extent
that last year it earned a profit of $1.8 m., the biggest of
any of the locals, and returned a 58 per cent rise in
revenue passenger-miles, the highest increase of any US
scheduled airline.

In the five years of his presidency Dymond has certainly
made his mark. For one thing he has been instrumental in
seeking an elevation in status for the locals, particularly
by bombarding the CAB with successful applications for
new route authority with the emphasis very much on the
longer hauls. Dymond’s philosophy is a simple one: given

Central can boast only the Dart powered Convair 600 as
the most up-to-date unit in its fleet. Eleven are in service,
supported by a handful of DC-3s.

Frontier is the only local service carrier to have actually
bought the Boeing 727, biggest jet in any of the 13 locals’
fleet inventories. In prospect is an order for five 727-200s
plus either 737s or DC-9s.




a slice of the trunk
route cake the locals
could reduce, if not
ultimately eliminate,
the need for Federal
subsidies. It is anoma-
lous, he thinks, that on
the one hand the locals
received $65 m. in
subsidy in 1966
whereas the trunks are
“making profits in ex-
cess of a reasonable
rate of return”.

So far as Frontier is
concerned Dymond
wants to put the situa-

Plane-washer to airline chief—Lewis W. Dymond,
chairman and president of Frontier Airlines.
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/Lew_Dymond. html

tion to rights, which is why the airline has a stack of new
route applications before the CAB awaiting hearing. Al-
ready it has been successful in winning Denver- Kansas
City-St. Louis rights as part of phase one of the CAB’s
Northwest- Southwest route case. Now the sights are on
still higher things with applications pending for new
routes from Denver to Seattle, San Diego, Los Angeles,
Chicago, New Orleans, Houston and Miami plus trans-
border services to Mexico.

Not unnaturally the trunks do not take a very benevolent
attitude towards the attempts of Frontier to muscle in on
their preserves. But Dymond has the bit firmly between
his teeth. When the 43-day IAM strike paralysed five
trunks last summer, costing them $826 m. in lost rev-
enues, Frontier jumped in feet first and applied—and in
most cases received—temporary CAB authority to serve
new markets outside its usual sphere of influence. The
CAB was reportedly impressed with the lightning reflexes
of Frontier in reacting to the strike situation. It was also
suitably impressed by the speed with which the airline
took up its new Denver-St. Louis rights last month.

Another of Dymond’s hobby-horses has been the intro-
duction of bargain basement fares. Thirteen are now on
offer by Frontier and from January to May this year 37 per
cent of Frontier’s total $10.5 m. revenues were account-
able to use of discount rates. Clergymen, Government
officials, vacationers, servicemen—practically everyone
who is not a businessman is eligible. Similarly, Frontier is
the only local actually to have bought the Boeing 727,
whereas most of the other locals have acquired smaller
capacity short-haul jets.

Such are the hopes of Dymond for Frontier that he is
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now talking in terms of increasing the present fleet of five
727-100s by taking up the options held on another five.

These, predicts Dymond, will almost certainly be the
still bigger Series 200 version and there is in prospect a
complementary order for DC-9-30s or 737-200s. Both
types are named in current route applications.

The present fleet, apart from the 727s, includes 21
Allison-turboprop Convair 580s plus the last four DC-3s
of the original 26. From Central, Frontier will acquire 11
Dart-engined Convair 600 conversions plus a few more
DC-3s. Central has been the only one of the 13 locals that
has never been firmly committed to a jet purchase, for
although there have been frequent rumblings of a DC-9
order, a purchase has never showed up on the official
Douglas customer listing.

The big question now being asked is what the Frontier-
Central merger will achieve in bringing about a reduction
in subsidy payments. Central currently receives $41 m.
per year and Frontier $44 m. The CAB examiner who
recommended the merger has now proposed a review of
the amounts, so presumably the merged unit must expect
less.

Dymond shows no concern over a likely reduction. He
thinks that a merged Frontier-Central will ultimately be
able to do without Federal handouts altogether and in the
meantime has pledged that all profits from new routes in
excess of a 10 per cent rate of return will be applied to
reducing the current figure still further. But obviously
there appears to be no little degree of arm twisting behind
the pledge. In a nutshell it is: give us more trunk routes on
which to make money and we will subsidize the unprof-
itable feeder lines. This is an argument which Dymond
has been touting around since his early days with Frontier.
Now that the airline is about to become king of the locals
there seems every reason to believe that the CAB will see
Dymond’s point of view.

Frontier and Central join forces to create a new, big
airline serving 114 cities 14 states.

Now there’s a new big airline. Frontier. A big one in
every way.

Big route system. Fourth-largest in the U. S. in air route
miles. Second-largest in number of cities served.

Big planes. A big fleet of Boeing 727 Arrow-Jets is
already in service. And Frontier has placed a $75 million
order for more.

Big service. A bigger hello when you step aboard, and
bigger food, beverage, and flight comforts than ever be-
fore.

Big savings. Frontier offers more special rate plans than
any other U.S. airline. That means you can travel farther,
in more comfort, for less on Frontier.

No Doubt about it. This is the start of something big.

Frontier. Big, new influence in air travel.
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37th DENVER ANNUAL REUNION PICNIC

Saturday, August 24, 2024
Doubletree Inn at [-225 and 1liff Ave in Aurora Colorado.

It’s been 38 years and we are still a family... come join the celebration at the Frontier Airlines Reunion in Au-
rora Colorado on Saturday the 24th of August starting at 10:00 am until 3:00 pm.

The cost will be $30 per person with a brunch and cash bar.

It is extremely important that you advise if you will attend by completing the section below and mailing it by

History Colorado will be coming to do interviews of those who want to share their story of their time with Fron-
tier. Dr. Storm is the Associate Curator of Business and Industry at History Colorado. The interviews will be
posted on their website for the world to hear.

We have reserved 10 rooms on the night of August 23rd for those who wish to come in early. The cost is $129
per night plus tax. The deadline is 11:59pm August 1. If the rooms are not sold by then—the rate returns to the
normal price and the link disappears. Here is the contact: Original Frontier Airlines rooms, 1-800-997-4058

We will have free tables for any “nostalgia” that you may wish to pass on to another FAL employee and the
usual drawing will be held.

A big THANKS to everyone who is attending the function and those who have mailed in advance donations.
We couldn’t continue if it were not for your generosity and support.

Committee

Carolyn Boller, 1293 Revere St., Aurora, CO 80011

303-905-4356 or 303-364 3624, ckboller@comcast.net
Julie Dickman, 15501 E 112th Ave Apt 24A, Commerce City, CO 80022
303-717-6242, jjdickman@gmail.com
Barbara Monday: 9800 E Walsh Pl, Denver, CO 80247,
303-344-8745, bgmonday@comcast.net
Anna Metzsch: 2600 Cirque Way, Montrose CO
81401 303-733-9968, annakayl946@hotmail.com
Mail check or cash to:
Carolyn Boller at 1293 Revere St, Aurora CO 80011.
Check should be made to FAL Picnic Fund. Do not make the check in my name.

Please detach on the line and mail to:
Carolyn Boller at 1293 Revere St, Aurora CO 80011

| will attend the picnic on Saturday (number in party)

Sorry, | cannot attend this year, however please keep my name on your list.
A donation is appreciated for continued mailing to cover postage & printing.

If the person, who is shown at this address, no longer resides at this address, please advise at
ckboller@comcast.net

Name:
Address:

City:, State, Zip:
Phone, Email:
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is a proud supporter of
THE FRONTIER NEWS at
http://FAL-1.tripod.com/FL_News.html
OLD FRONTIER AIRLINES WEBSITE
http://OldFrontierAirlines.com
Jake Lamkins, Webmaster,
ExFAL@Yahoo.com
and http://www.KansasCityCrewBase.com
Capt'n Phil Stallings, Webmaster,
RedRyder35@att.net
Check the websites for FL news,
notices on upcoming events,
pictures and stories from the past.

BOJANG WHYHIGH

Marriage
is a duet
Where one sings
the other claps




